Minutes

CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE



31 July 2017

Meeting held at Committee Room 3 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

	Committee Members Present: Councillors Jane Palmer (Chairman), Nick Denys (Vice-Chairman), Dominic Gilham, Becky Haggar, John Oswell, Jan Sweeting, Judith Cooper, Kanwal Dheer and Brian Stead (substitute) and Tony Little (Roman Catholic Diocesan Representative).
	LBH Officers Present: Tony Zaman (Corporate Director Of Social Care), Dan Kennedy (Deputy Director, Housing, Environment, Education, Health & Wellbeing), Tom Murphy (Assistant Director of Early Intervention Prevention & SEND), Julie Mellor (Service Manager; Early Support Early Intervention Prevention and SEND), Peter Malewicz (Finance Manager, Children and Young People Services) and Anisha Teji (Democratic Services Officer)
	Also Present: Steve Ashley (Independent Chairman of Hillingdon Local Safeguarding Children Board)
13.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)
	Apologies received from Cllr Kauffman, with Cllr Stead substituting.
14.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THE MEETING (Agenda Item 2)
	None.
15.	MATTERS NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item 3)
	None.
16.	TO CONFIRM THAT ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 4)
	It was confirmed that all items were in Part 1 and would be heard in public.
17.	TO AGREE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11 MAY 2017 AND 12 JUNE 2017 (Agenda Item 5)
	The minutes from 11 May 2017 were confirmed as an accurate record.
	The minutes from 12 June 2017 were confirmed as an accurate record, subject to the addition that there were unfilled 150 secondary school places in the Borough.

18. LOCAL SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN'S BOARD ANNUAL REPORT (Agenda Item 6)

The Independent Chairman of the Hillingdon Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) introduced the Annual Report 2016/17. He gave an overview of the report and the LSCB's current state of play.

The following key points were made in discussion:

- Overall there was positive progress in the LSCB's work. There were currently strong partnerships in place.
- Child safeguarding was meeting the standards expected.
- The LSCB had developed progressive training packages for all agencies and provided administrative and project management skills to move the LSCB forward. This included the development of audit and performance processes.
- There were concerns raised around the Metropolitan Police and how safeguarding was managed. Recent disappointing reports had resulted in the appointment of a new commissioner and a restructuring of services. The London Borough of Hillingdon was well served by the commissioner as he was engaged with services. In summary, if there was limited police engagement there was a risk that children were in danger.
- Other concerns raised were the pressures around health and training around child safeguarding. A recent restructure had taken place which focussed on early help and intervention.
- Over a two year period there was a steady marked improvement in services.

The LSCB performance management framework had four key priorities which focussed on:

- Neglect dealing with early intervention and early help. For example tracking unborn children in Hillingdon.
- Partnerships working together- in an environment where resources were limited, there was an emphasis on the need to work together to ensure that everyone remain engaged with the process to protect children from identified risks in order to ensure their safety and welfare. The level of attendance in core group meetings had improved and many agencies had bought in to this service. Steps taken included alone meetings between social care workers and children and changes to the current electronic recording system.
- Overseeing the implementation of early help and early intervention programme in Hillingdon - a new programme had developed which focused on the engagement of safeguarding partners. The programme included the implementation of a scorecard which contained the right performance indicators and outcome measures to assess the differences.
- Safeguarding arrangements in Hillingdon Strong governance arrangements and a monthly audit program were now delivered by the Childrens Services Quality Assurance Teams and the findings were reported to senior managers. Recommendations from serious case reviews and domestic homicides were monitored through the case review subcommittee. There was also a focus on ensuring adequate training for front line staff.

The following key points were made in discussion:

 There had been good voluntary engagement in training sessions although it was difficult to fully engage voluntary organisations as there was no single

- place to go to. For example, although there was good engagement with the Youth Council, it was not always easy to reach the children who were at risk.
- The Childrens Act 2004 did not make it clear what organisations were responsible for funding.
- Agencies known for being inadequate were closely worked with and monitored in order to encourage improvement.
- Although it was unclear how long the process took from receipt of a referral, the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) was central to the front door work of safeguarding.
- There was a general consensus that organisations needed to focus on prevention. It was inexcusable to not understand how to react in safeguarding situations and each body involved needed to be held accountable.

It was noted that there was a typo on page 48/78 in relation to Baby W which needed to be corrected.

RESOLVED -

- 1. That officers be congratulated for their hard work.
- 2. That the report be noted.

19. MAJOR REVIEW - CONSIDERATION OF SCOPING REPORT (Agenda Item 7)

Officers introduced the scoping report entitled, 'Giving the Youngest Children the Best Start in Life: To consider the identification, intervention and transitions for children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) in the early years, to support preparation for later life'

The Committee gave consideration to the detail contained in the draft scoping report. A member questioned what would be achieved from the review, given the recent positive Ofsted inspection outcome. The Committee was keen to undertake a review that would make a difference.

Officers highlighted that the review would focus on the importance of early intervention of children with SEND between the ages of 0-5. The review would specifically focus on families who required support. Although there was good work in this area, there was still a large scope for improvement.

Officers explained that identification, intervention and transition were the key themes within the review. Identifying needs at an early stage, considering the support available, how to support the transition into school and with the increase in demand especially with autism how to better manage the support.

The Committee asked what success looked like and how it was measured. Officers advised that a key consideration was how the Council was ready and prepared to deliver good services. This was outcome focussed within a demographic increase and changing the culture.

RESOLVED -

- 1) That the Committee agreed the title report, scoping report and witnesses required to conduct the review.
- 2) That the report be noted.

20. BUDGET PLANNING REPORT FOR EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES 2017/18 (Agenda Item 8)

Officers presented the 2016/17 Budget Planning Report for Children, Young People and Learning Services. This was the first opportunity to consider issues relating to budget planning for 2018/2019 and the report focussed on the broader financial position of the Council and signposting major issues within Children, Young People and Learning Services budgets.

Officers explained that another report would be presented to the POC in January 2018 which would set out detailed budget proposals. These proposals were due to be presented to Cabinet in December 2017.

The following key points were made in discussion:

- The current forecast for 2017/18 was for a Council savings requirement of £22.2 million.
- There was positive progress being made. The Council remained in a strong position to deal with the challenges ahead.
- The Council had a good track record of coming in or under budget each year and had retained balance of 38.7m by the end of 2016/17, although 14.5 m of that was expected to being drawn down from 2017/18 to smooth the impact of Government funding reductions.
- The development of savings fell into five broad themes including service transformation, effective procurement, income generation and commercialisation, preventing demand and zero based reviews.
- Social worker recruitment continued to be a national challenge. There had been success in overseas recruitment and converting agency contracts into permanent contracts. There had also been success at a senior level recruitment with many permanent contracted positions now being filled.
- Although there had been significant improvements in residential placements, the Looked After Children population was expected to grow and the service was dealing with more complex cases.
- The number of Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children was reducing and this would impact the amount of funding the Council received from the Home Office.
- Home to School Transport services were being reviewed and the Council had employed EDGE consultants to undertake a transformation of the service.
- As the Children and Social Work Act 2017 was imbedded into practice, there
 would be an impact on the cost of service. This is due to the fact that the Act
 made a number of changes to the way in which the Council provided support and
 advice to care givers.
- There were pressures on school funding and there was an increase in the demand for high needs placements providing support for those children that had an Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP).
- The introduction of the 30 hour free child care entitlement started on 1 September 2017 however it was discretionary for providers. The Council was working with providers to ensure that there was a reasonable level of capacity.
- There were projects underway to expand local schools in the Borough. There
 had been an increased demand for school places and it was forecasted that the
 number of SEN children would also increase.

	RESOLVED -
	 That officers be thanked for the comprehensive overview of the budgetary situation that had been provided to the Committee. That the report be noted.
21.	CABINET FORWARD PLAN - REVIEW FORTHCOMING DECISIONS (Agenda Item 9)
	RESOLVED -
	(1) The Cabinet Forward Plan was noted.
22.	WORK PROGRAMME - REVIEW THE WORK PROGRAMME FOR THE COMING YEAR (Agenda Item 10)
	Further to previous requests to incorporate the service improvement plan into the work programme, the Committee asked for an update. Officers advised that this matter would be looked into further.
	RESOLVED
	 (1) That the work programme be noted. (2) That officers look into the status of the service improvement plan and liaise directly with the Chairman about putting it back onto the work programme.
	The meeting, which commenced at 7pm, closed at 8.35pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Anisha Teji on 01895 277655. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.